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Questions and Answers
Following are the questions submitted and answers provided for the above mentioned Request for Proposal. The questions and answers are to be considered as part of the Request for Proposal.  It is the Bidder’s responsibility to check the State Purchasing Bureau website for all addenda or amendments.

 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1

	QUESTIONS
	ANSWERS

	1. Quest Health & Wellness does not offer all of the services requested in this RFP.  We currently work with many companies who provide the type of “AFTER THE SCREENINGS” kinds of services requested.  Will the state consider splitting up the services and picking two or more partners who could then deliver a total solution?  
	The State is seeking one contractor to administer the Wellness Program.  


	2. In the scope of Services portion on (page 23) EE. PERFORMANCE BOND

The contractor will be required to supply a cashier’s check –can you explain the cashier’s check process and what types of concerns the state has for requiring this bond ?
	Section IV, EE Performance Bond states “…Cashier’s checks will only be allowed for contracts for three (3) years or less, including all renewal options…”  Since the resulting contract is more than three (3) years; a performance bond in the amount of $200,000.00 will be required.  The bond is held for the life of the contract including renewals.  If the bond has an annual expiration date, the State will require a bond continuance prior to expiration of the bond.  It should be stated in the proposal response if the bidder wants to provide a renewable bond instead of a bond that will be valid for the entire life of the contract including renewals.
The State is requiring a performance bond to cover liquidated damages if the contractor breaches the contract.  If the contractor fulfills the requirements, terms and conditions of the contract; the performance bond will be returned to the contractor upon expiration of the contract including all renewal periods.

	3. O

Section II Procurement Procedures
Page 7

When is the license and the Certificate of Good Standing or Letter of Good Standing due? RFP states when recipient of an Intent to Award will be required to certify that it has so complied and produce a true and exact copy of its current (within ninety (90) calendar days). RFP also starts in same section Bidders should submit the above certification(s) with their bid. Please confirm certification is due at point where the intent is released.  SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1

 SEQ CHAPTER \h \r 1
	The bidders may submit either the Letter of Good Standing or Certificate of Good Standing with the proposal response. The Letter or Certificate is not a requirement of the proposal response. 

The contractor must submit either the Letter of Good Standing or Certificate of Good Standing before entering into a contract with the State.  The Letter or Certificate is required from the contractor.

	4. Section II, Item O

Page 7

Is the Certificate of Good Standing or Letter of Good Standing required during the proposal process or at time of contract award?
	Refer to the answer to Question #3.

	5. Section IV, Item B, #3 and Attachment 4

Page 37 

Based on the eligibility provided here (13,800 employees, 5,800 spouses), can we provide pricing for certain components (ie, wellness portal, wellness programming) on eligibility rather than participation?
	Yes, services may be priced on eligibility rather than components.  Bidders determine which billing measurement and include it on the Cost Proposal.
See Attachment 4 REVISED dated 5/15/2015, Cost Proposal.

	6. Section IV, Item C #3

Page 38

Are the use of Ipads at screening events mandatory requirement? What are the Ipads used for?
	iPads are available at the biometric screening events for participants to complete their health assessment.  iPads are not a requirement; however, providing participants with the ability to complete their health assessment electronically at the screening event is preferred.  

	7. Section IV, Item F #1.a.v.j-k

Page 41
Please confirm spouses are also provided on the eligibility files.
	Yes, spouses are included on the eligibility files with their own unique identifier.  

	8. Attachment 4

Can the participation for onsite screenings, home test kits, and physician forms be provided? There is an error in that cell.
	See Attachment 4 REVISED dated 5/15/2015, Cost Proposal.

	9. Cover Page of RFP - Scope of Service

Cover Page

Please confirm that only one (1) hard copy of the entire proposal is required
	The bidder should submit one (1) original of the entire proposal.  

	10. Project Environment, #1

Page 37

Is it manadatory to have 2 employees located onsite to manage the administration of the program?   Can you provide a brief description of each role?
	See Section V, A, 2, i for personnel requirements.  It is not mandatory to have 2 onsite employees.  The bidder must include details on how current services conducted by onsite staff would be handled.

Onsite staff employees are provided by the  current contractor.  The State does not employ any wellness staff to administer the employee wellness program 

Current onsite staff:

Wellness Coordinator – Manages day-to-day operations, strategic planning, program development, communication strategy, escalated participant concerns, works close with State leadership in wellness-related endeavors.
Wellness Specialist – Develop educational materials, provide onsite education to employees and leadership throughout the State, coordinates Wellness Champions program, promotes wellness engagement, provide customer service to employees and HR staff.  
See Attachment 3 REVISED dated 5/15/2015, Technical Requirements Questionnaire.

	11. Project Environment, #3

Page 37

Please confirm how the program is currently priced.  Is it based on the eligible # of 19,600 or the 12,000 participants?
	See current contract 38349 O4 

  

	12. Section F, Technical Requirements, #V, Letter I

Page 41

Please elaborate on what is meant by "the ability to track the employee and spouse by linked records."
	Both the employee and spouse are required to complete the wellness program requirements separately.   Linking the spouse to the employees is required for communication and reporting purposes and to determine eligibility for the incentives.  

	13. Section A, Project Overview

Page 37

What is the motivation for going out to market?
	Refer to Nebraska Statutes 73-504 Competitive Bid Requirements and 73-506 State Agency Contracts for Services; Requirements.

	14. Section A, Project Overview

Page 37

Please confirm the current rate of the inforce progam and are they any additional fees aside from that rate?  If so, please provide details
	Refer to the answer to Question #11.
There are no fees in addition to the contracted rates.

	15. #6, Wellness Portal

Page 39

On the wellness portal, what do you currently have the ability to schedule appointments for?
	The current wellness portal provides the ability to schedule appointments for Biometric screenings and coaching.

	16. Section B, Acct Mgmt

Attachment 3

Attachment 3 mentions  the possibility that the State could retain current onsite staff team members.  Are these current onsite staff team members employees of the state or the incumbent wellness provider?
	Refer to the answer to Question #10.   

	17. Please clarify the level of 508 compliance needed for the visually impaired including the wellness portal and the HRA. Does this mean an interactive HRA must be in place?
	The State does not specify a level of 508 compliance.  It is the responsibility of the bidder/contractor to ensure their software is compliant.  The contractor must comply with the Terms and Conditions of the finalized contract.  

See Section III, WW. Nebraska Technology Access Standards.  
See current contract 38349 O4 

	18.  Is full 508 compliance of all program modules required to bid on this solicitation? 
	Refer to the answer to Question #17.

	19. Can you provide insight on what is currently in place and what the State of Nebraska expects from the awarded vendor surrounding a 508 compliant site and HRA?
	Refer to the answer to Question #17

	20. Main RFP, Procurement Procedures, Sub-section P, Violation of Terms and Conditions

Page 8

With regard to the resultant contract, please define “violation of terms and conditions.” Is violation of terms and conditions understood to be a material breach of contract?
	Yes, the violation of terms and conditions would be considered a breach of contract.

	21. Main RFP, Section III, Terms and Conditions

Page 9-36

Can initials noting acceptance or rejection by Contractor be typed or must they be provided in handwriting?
	Initials may be handwritten or typed.

	22. Main RFP, Terms and Conditions, Sub-section B, Award

Page 10

The second paragraph on page 10, states “By submitting a proposal in response to this Request for Proposal, the bidder grants to the State the right to contact or arrange a visit in person with any or all of the bidder’s clients.” Is the bidder notified in advance of direct contact with its clients?
	The bidder will not be notified in advance of direct contact with clients.



	23. Main RFP, Section III, Terms and Conditions, Sub-section IV, Evidence of Coverage

Page 13

This item requires that bidders “furnish the State, with their proposal response, a certificate of insurance coverage complying with the above requirements to the attention of the Buyer at 402-471-2089 (fax).” Please confirm that bidders are required to fax the certificate in addition to providing a copy with their proposal responses. Also, are bidders required to fax the certificate on the proposal due date of May 26, 2015, prior to 2 p.m. on that date, or are bidders required to fax the certificate prior to the due date of May 26?
	The bidder may submit the certificate of insurance coverage either with the proposal response or via fax to 402-471-2089.  The Certificate of Insurance is not a requirement of the proposal response.  However, a compliant Certificate of Insurance is required before contract award.

	24. Main RFP, Section III, Terms and Conditions, Sub-section U., Advertising

Page 18

Can the State and the Contractor add to the agreement a provision to issue a mutual press release upon execution of this Agreement?
	In the proposal response, provide the proposed provision in the box provided under U. Advertising for consideration by the State. 

	25. Main RFP, Section III, Terms and Conditions, Sub-section PP, Proprietary Information

Page 19

The RFP states, “All proprietary information the bidder wishes the State to withhold must be submitted in a sealed package, which is separate from the remainder of the proposal, and provide supporting documents showing why such documents should be marked proprietary.” Please clarify if bidders are required to submit a full and separate Technical response with those pages deemed proprietary and confidential deleted and replaced with a narrative explanation for deletion OR if the State wishes for bidders to submit a separate, sealed binder that includes only those pages it wishes to deem proprietary along with an explanation.
	The State requires that bidders submit a separate, sealed binder that includes only those pages it wishes to deem proprietary along with an explanation.
Identify and package the proprietary information per Section III, PP Proprietary Information.

	26. Main RFP, Terms and Conditions, Sub-section JJ, Right to Audit

Page 25

Would an independent auditor, agreeable to both the State of Nebraska and the Contractor, be acceptable to the State?
	In the proposal response, provide the proposed provision in the box provided under JJ. Right to Audit for consideration by the State. 

	27. Main RFP, Terms and Conditions, Sub-section VV, Indemnification

Page 31

Can Contractor and any State indemnification be with regard to a material breach and limited to third-party claims to the extent caused by one party or the other's gross negligence or willful misconduct?
	In the proposal response, provide the proposed provision in the box provided under VV. Indemnification for consideration by the State.

	28. Main RFP, Section C

Page 39

Is it the State’s intention for the selected vendor to interview and consider the current on-site staff?
	Refer to the answer to Question #10.

	29. Main RFP, Section F, Technical Requirements, item ii.d.

Page 40

Does the State currently provide iPads at screening events for HA completions?  If so, can the State please provide utilization numbers and an overview of the member experience?
	All materials and equipment including the iPads are provided by the contractor.  

The State does not have record of the number of participants who utilize iPads at screening events to complete their health assessment.
Refer to the answer in Question #6.  

	30. Main RFP, Technical Requirements, item vi.b.

Page 40-41

Please provide additional information regarding the State’s expectations with regard to segmented reporting.
	The State participants represent over 80 agencies and multiple locations.  Reporting requirements include the ability to drill down to both agency and location outcomes and participation.    

	31. Main RFP, Section V., Proposal Instructions; Page 47, Section 3, Technical Approach, items a – e

Page 43

This item on page 43 states, “Bidders should identify the subdivisions of ‘Project Description and Scope of Work’ clearly in their proposals; failure to do so may result in disqualification.” However, page 47 states that the technical proposal must include five sections (a. through e). Where should bidders place the “subdivisions of ‘Project Description and Scope of Work’” within these five sections?
	The bidder should identify and provide responses under Section IV Project Description and Scope of Work.  The bidder should identify and provide responses to Section V, A, 3 Technical Approach, a – e.  
The responses may be submitted in separate identified sections of the proposal response.

	32. Attachment 2, Item 7, Health Screenings, Total AMS

Page 1

Please define “AMS.”
	AMS stands for Alternative Means Screening. It’s the form physicians complete for participants and used as an alternative to attending an onsite screening.  

	33. Attachment 2, Item 5, Coaching, Lifestyle Management Enrollment

Page 1

Please advise if the January, 2015 number is all telephonic coaching enrollments or are other forms included? If so, can the State please provide a breakdown of the types of lifestyle management enrollment (i.e., telephonic, paper, online, etc.)?
	Format used to enroll in coaching is not available. 
The number provided in Attachment 2 includes the total number of participants who enrolled in the coaching program.  The State does not require a breakdown of how the participants communicate with the contractor’s coaching staff.  

	34. Attachment 3, Item B, Account Management (Onsite Staff Strategy)

Page 1

Please provide additional clarity around the roles of the two on-site personnel?
	Refer to the answer to Question #10.

	35. Attachment 3

Page 1, 4, 5, & 7

Please explain the level of 508 compliance in place with the current vendor?
	Refer to the answer to Question #17.  

	36. Attachment 3 Section E, Wellness Programming, Question 4

Page 3

Please explain what is meant by “a local recognition program and process.”
	The bidder should explain how to recognize outstanding achievements for participants in the State’s wellness program.  

	37. Attachment 3, Section F, Health and Chronic Condition Coaching

Page 5

Is disease management part of the State’s medical plan or is it fully administered through the current wellness vendor?
	Some components of the disease management is administered through the wellness contractor. 
See Attachment 2, 5. Coaching for the Conditional Mgmt Enrollment. 

	38. Attachment 3, Section F, Health and Chronic Condition Coaching

Page 5

Is the State willing to consider a non-traditional alternative disease agnostic approach to disease management or is the State seeking a traditional disease management approach only?
	The State may consider any or all disease management approaches proposed by the bidder.  

	39. Attachment 4, Item 3, Biometric Screening

Page 1

Can the State please provide addresses for the screening locations to help ensure the travel estimate is most accurate?
	See Attachment 5 REVISED dated 5/15/2015, 2015 Biometric Screening Sites.

	40. Attachment 5

Page 1

Can the State please provide the screening volume at each location listed in Attachment 5 from 2014?
	Refer to the answer to Question #39.



	41. General Question

Are current financial terms including outcomes and guarantees available to the public?
	See current contract 38349 O4 

Performance guarantees were not included on the current vendor contract.  

	42. General Question

Is the current executed contract available to the public?
	See current contract 38349 O4 



	43. Since this is a multi-year contract,  it will be important to make sure that the bond can be written on a year-by-year basis. Section EE.  Performance Bond indicates that the bond "shall be valid for the life of the contract to include any renewal and/or extensions periods." The way the RFP is written, the term of the bond could potentially be for a period of 9 plus year.  Can you confirm that the State will accept an annually renewable bond?
	Refer to the answer to Question #2.

	44. Section 1 Scope of the Request for Proposal indicates the "contract resulting from this Request for Proposal will be issued approximately for a period of five (5) years effective the date of award.  The contract has the option to be renewed for four (4) additional one (1) year periods as mutually agreed upon by all parties.  The State reserves the right to extend the period of this contract beyond the termination date when mutually agreeable to the Contractor and the State of Nebraska." Are the five years issued at the time of the award and the next four additional years two separate options that both equal five years or is this for a period of up to nine years total—with five initial years under contract and four subsequent renewals at one year intervals? Will the State of Nebraska go out to bid annually?
	The initial term of the contract is for five (5) years and will be awarded as such.  The optional renewal periods will be issued one (1) year at a time up to four (4) years.  This contract has the potential to be in place for nine (9) years.
The State reserves the right to exercise any or all of the optional renewal periods.  

	45. B. Cost Proposal Requirements and Attachment 4 (Cost Proposal)

Page 47-48

What is the annual administrative budget for the requested wellness initiative (for the stated 13,800 employees + 5,800 spouses)? Current vs. Planned? Is the state seeking a fee reduction as part of this request for proposal?
	See current contract 38349 O4 

The State’s wellness budget is determined by the contracted fee for service and projected enrollment.  

	46. C

Page 38

Can you confirm how the current wellness program addresses 508 compliance?
	Refer to the answer to Question #17.

	47. C

Page 38

How does the current screening vendor manage security for onsite HA completion via iPads?
	The security at screenings is considered proprietary information. Security measures taken by the current contractor will not be disclosed.

Bidders should provide the best solution to the requirements of this RFP.

	48. E

Page 40

Can you provide additional detail related to current wellness program gaps and successes? Are there specific additional programs the State is interested in pursuing? What characteristics of its current wellness vendor partner relationship would the state seek to change? 
	Bidders should provide the best solution to the requirements of this RFP.

	49. D.v.j and k

Page 41

Will both eligibility files contain the same data elements and common unique identifiers?
	The contractor will provide the file specifications required for the eligibility file.   

	50. O

Page 7

Can you confirm if Secretary of State/Tax Commissioner Registration is required as part of the proposal submission vs. prior to contract award?
	Refer to the answer to Question #3.

	51. Attachment 4

Page 2

Can you confirm if the disease management participation is unique to each condition? For example, are participants double counted if they’re in both a diabetes program and asthma program?
	Yes, participation is unique to each condition.

	52. Attachment 3 – Section E

Can you confirm how many unique product configurations will be required (e.g., unique deliverables/services for unions, locations, etc.) vs. one standard wellness offering across all locations and populations?
	The State provides one standard wellness offering across all locations and populations.    

	53. Attachment 3 – Section H
Can you confirm how the current wellness program addresses 508 compliance?
	Refer to the answer to Question #17.

	54. Please clarify whether the University of Nebraska and Colleges personnel are covered under the scope of this RFP/Wellness program
	The University of Nebraska and colleges personnel are not covered under this RFP.

	55. Why is the State seeking a change in wellness program vendor at this time?
	Refer to the answer to Question #13.

	56. Does the state expect to keep the WellNEssoptions brand
	The bidder may provide a response that includes the current branding and/or may recommend alternatives as part of a future programming strategy as part of the technical approach,

	57. III. Terms and Conditions/
J. Contract Personnel

Page 15

Does  the requirement that all personnel be employees of the Contractor include staff utilized for biometric screening events, or is it referring to key account personnel assigned to manage the partnership with the State?
	This provision includes all persons assigned to the project which include employees of the Contractor or specified Sub-Contractors.


	58. IV. Project Description and Scope of Work/
B. Project Environment
Page 37

Of the 12,000 participants in the current program, how many are eligible employees and how many are spouses, COBRA, and pre-65 retirees?
	Estimated figures are as follows:

8500 employees 

3500 spouses  

130 COBRA/retirees 

	59. IV. Project Description and Scope of Work/
C. Current Project Requirements

Page 39

Please further clarify what is meant by an organization’s “ability to support local recognition” program and process.
	Refer to the answer to Question #36.

	60.  IV. Project Description and Scope of Work/
C. Current Project Requirements
Page 39

Please identify the number of “agency or business segments” that may require unique configurations and reporting.
	Refer to the answer to Question #30.

	61.  IV. Project Description and Scope of Work/
C. Current Project Requirements
Page 39

Does the State require 2 dedicated onsite staff, and could you still describe their activities. 
	Refer to the answer to Question #10.

	62. IV. Project Description and Scope of Work/
D. Business Requirements
Page 40

Please identify which internal and external vendors/partners we should expect to exchange data with.
	Currently, the wellness contractor receives data from the State’s HRIS system (Workday), health insurance carrier (UnitedHealthcare) and COBRA administrator (ASI COBRA).  

The State will identify the internal and external partners as the need occurs.  

	63. IV. Project Description and Scope of Work/
F. Technical Requirements

Page 41

Please clarify the type of tracking of linked records that are being requested in the following “Wellness Portal - Ability to track employee and spouse by linked records.”
	Refer to the answer to Question #12.

	64.  Attachment 2
Page 1

The State’s wellness website activity increased substantially from PY2014 (16,972) to Jan. 2015 (21,193). To what does the State attribute the increase?
	The contractor changed platforms for PY2015 and the new platform measures logins differently.   

	65. Attachment 3 Technical Requirements
Page 7

In response to the question, “Can individuals access their personal health record on the platform? Provide screen shots.”

Please clarify what is expected for the Personal Health Record. Is this a summary of an individual’s health risks and profile based on information gathered through their participation, or does this include broader (external) health information (provider info, medications, etc)?
	The Personal Health Record is defined by the bidder.  Currently, the Personal Health Record summarizes the individuals health risks gathered through their health assessment.  It does not include any data from medical claims.  

	66. EE. Performance Bond
Page 34

When is the performance bond due?
	The performance bond must be received and compliant prior to contract award.


	67. B. Project Environment

Page 37

Describe the difference between the two onsite roles and associated cost: Health Services Coordinator and Wellness Specialist.

· How much travel do they perform?

· How many sites do they visit?

· Where are they currently based?

What are your largest (top 10) employee locations?
	Refer to the answer to Question #10 for onsite staff roles.  Any and all costs must be submitted on the cost proposal. 
Travel is required for onsite staff.  Travel varies each year as determined by programming and educational requests.  
On average, the onsite wellness staff visits approximately 40-50 sites each year with overnight travel required less than 5 times per year.  As the culture of wellness grows and education opportunities increase, the need for travel may vary and is required.
They are currently located with the Employee Wellness & Benefits Division in Lincoln, Nebraska.  

Page 11 of the State Almanac reports employee headcount by county.  http://nlcs1.nlc.state.ne.us/epubs/P2000/B004-2014.pdf 

	68. B. Project Environment
Page 37

How many wellness champions does the State currently have?

· What are their roles/responsibilities?

What sites currently have wellness champions?
	The State currently has approximately 140 wellness champions.  Their role is to promote wellness within their location.  
Champions are used only to promote the wellness culture and direct people to DAS for assistance and training.  

A report showing where current wellness champions work is not available.   

	69. B. Project Environment
Please clarify that all employees and spouses are eligible for these wellness program activities regardless of medical plan selection.
	Only employees and spouses enrolled on a State health plan are eligible to participate in the wellness program.  Employees who waive health insurance benefits are not eligible.    

	70. C. Current Project Requirements

Page 38

Please clarify your intent for Requirement #1 “dedicated onsite Account Management Staff.” Are you requiring a full-time, dedicated account executive? Or does the wellness coordinator satisfy this requirement?
	Refer to the answer to Question #10.  

	71. C. Current Project Requirements

Page 38-39

Do you expect the successful vendor to duplicate your current program or are you open to vendors suggesting alternatives based on our best practices?
	See Section IV - E. Scope of Work.

	72. C. Current Project Requirements

Page 39

How many onsite events do you have per year and at how many locations? Please provide by event type (ex. lunch-n-learns, challenges)
	See response to question 67.  A record of onsite training performed is currently not requested by the State.  
The frequency and type of event varies each year.  Onsite events vary by requests from agencies and wellness programming.      
Bidders should provide the best solution to the requirements of this RFP.

	73. E. Scope of Work
Page 39

Who is the current Wellness contractor for the State? How long has this relationship been in place? Does one vendor currently administer all of your programs?
	The current contractor is HealthFitness who has been our contractor since the wellness program was launched in 2009.  

Currently, one contractor administers the entire program.
See current contract 38349 O4 

	74. E. Scope of Work

Page 39

E. Scope of work says “State’s current Wellness Program has growing participation and proven results.” What results have been achieved with the current program? Please provide actual results for risk reduction and improvements in lifestyle modifications.
	A summary of wellness program outcomes are included in our report to the legislature found here PY13-14 Annual Health Plan Report.  

	75. F. Technical Requirements

Page 40-41

Is 508 compliance a mandatory requirement, or can vendors accommodate the essence of this intent using other methods to assist the visually impaired?
	Refer to the answer to Question #17.

	76. F. Technical Requirements

Page 40

Is iPad use at screening events a mandatory requirement? Is the vendor expected to provide the iPads, or are they provided by the State?
	Refer to the answers to Questions #6 and #29.  

	77. F. Technical Requirements

Page 40

iii. Onsite Activities and Campaigns: What is the expectation around travel and providing services at the various state locations? 

a. Onsite Program Management (and coaching):  Is coaching currently managed by the Health Services Coordinator and/or Wellness Specialist, or is coaching currently a separate role?

c. Ability to support location recognition: Please provide additional detail on this requirement including your definition of “location recognition.”
	Refer to the answers to Question #67.   
Coaching is managed by trained lifestyle and condition management professionals provided by the contractor.  Onsite coaching is only offered 1-2 times per year in larger locations to help promote the program.  Onsite coaching is also available at screening events each year to assist with enrollment and answer questions.  

 Refer to the answer to Question #36.

	78. F. Technical Requirements

Page 41

Wellness Portal

e. Secure portal with ability to schedule appointments: – Please clarify the type of appointments you expect to be able to schedule through the portal.

f. Single sign on capability: Please clarify that this requirement is to provide SSO from your intranet site.

i. Ability to track employee and spouse by linked records:  Please clarify what is meant by this requirement.
	78-e Refer to the answer to Question #15.  Bidders should provide the best solution to the requirements of this RFP.
78-f  The wellness portal is available to the State participants through the internet.  The State does not have an intranet.  

An example of when single sign-on would be required if a wellness program is supported by a subcontractor and linked through the vendor’s website.

78-i.  Refer to the answer to Question #12.



	79. F. Technical Requirements

Page 41

b. Reporting and Measurement

Segmented reporting by business unit and location: Will the required information be provided in both eligibility files?
	Yes, information will be provided in both of the eligibility files.

	80. F. Technical Requirements

Page 41

Communication and Engagement: 

· What challenges/barriers (if any) have you had engaging your population? 

· What types of tactics have worked particularly well in the past?  

· Please provide demographic information for your population.

· Please provide any additional information that you think would be helpful in us creating a communication strategy for your population.
· Please provide demographic information such as population by site.
	80-a.  Challenges and barriers vary by location.  Some challenges and barriers include workforce with limited or no access to computers, communicating to spouses and COBRA/retirees, willingness to change, understanding correlation between wellness and health plan premiums, older workforce, 
80-b.  Some tactics that work include educating Wellness Champions and HR partners; onsite education, recorded training options, mobile accessibility to programming, and communicating through home emails and text messages.

See Personnel Almanac   http://nlcs1.nlc.state.ne.us/epubs/P2000/B004-2014.pdf 
Bidders should provide the best solution to the requirements of this RFP.
See Personnel Almanac   http://nlcs1.nlc.state.ne.us/epubs/P2000/B004-2014.pdf 


	81. Attachment 1
Page 1

For the “Walk this Way” Wellness program, are pedometers provided by your current vendor, the State, or participants?
	The current process is as follows.

Participants have the choice to receive a pedometer when they register.  If they elect to receive a pedometer, the contractor mails the pedometer to the participant and the cost is billed to the State.  
Bidders should provide the best solution to the requirements of this RFP.

	82. Attachment 2

Page 1

Please describe your Chronic Condition Management Program. Is this program offered by the same vendor as the wellness  programs?

· What is the prevalence rate by disease state?

· What percent of members with a chronic illness are identified as high risk, moderate risk and low risk? 

· What percent are engaged telephonically

· Please provide the current ROI attained as well as a list of clinical care and utilization improvement statistics by disease state.
· Please provide additional insight into what is working well with your chronic condition management program and what you would like to see improved.
	Coaching for chronic conditions is one of the programs available through our wellness program.  The provider of the services is provided by the current contractor.  

The State’s health contractor sends the wellness contractor a claims file with diagnosis codes to trigger participants eligible for specific coaching programs offered through the wellness program.  The wellness contractor outreaches the participant to offer coaching.  

The top three diagnosis by prevalence/claimants per 1,000:

· Diabetes – 96.5

· Hypertension – 105.2

· Musculoskeletal – 147.7

Risk levels for wellness program members with chronic conditions is not available.  

The State does not track what percent are engaged telephonically.  

The ROI is published by the entire program, not by the individual components.  Refer to the PY13-14 Annual Health Plan Report.    
Bidders should provide the best solution to the requirements of this RFP.

	83. Attachment 2

Page 1

Do the State’s top conditions/risks correlate with the programs with the highest enrollment on the Wellness Scorecard?
	No, the State’s top conditions don’t correlate with the programs with the highest enrollment on the Wellness Scorecard.

The top three diagnosis by prevalence/claimants per 1,000:

· Diabetes – 96.5

· Hypertension – 105.2

· Musculoskeletal – 147.7

	84. Attachment 2

Page 1

Of participants that complete a Health Assessment, what percent participate in lifestyle modification programs?
	See Attachment 2 for participation statistics.  

	85. Attachment 2

Page 1

What percent of members are outreached to by a Health Coach for telephonic counseling, and what percent perform their lifestyle modification programs online?
	The Lifestyle Management and Condition Management coaching programs all require working with a personal coach.  The State does not request information about how participants are outreached by their Health Coach.  
The Personalized Lifestyle Program offered to participants is performed entirely online.  Participation in this program is reported on Attachment 2.  

	86. Attachment 3
Page 1

Account Management (Onsite Staff, Strategy) states: “The State of NE currently has two onsite wellness staff, a Wellness Coordinator and Wellness Specialist. There may be current onsite staff team members that the State would like to retain, and if appropriate move to the new vendor.” Is the vendor allowed to assess existing resources prior to an agreement to hire them?
	Refer to the answer to Question #10.  


	87. Attachment 3

Page 3

Section E includes a question regarding vendor’s Ability to tailor the portal by agency or business segment. Please provide additional detail around the expected level of tailoring. (For example, do you expect the incentive design to vary across business segment, would you like to promote different programs to each segment, etc.)
	The State offers the same wellness program for all participants to qualify for the incentives. 

Some agencies offer wellness challenges for their employees such as a weight loss challenge or bicycle challenge.  



	88. Attachment 3
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Section F #9: In how many locations do you currently offer onsite coaching?
	Onsite coaching events are coordinated by the contractor.  For the past year onsite coaching was offered in the Lincoln and Omaha State Office Buildings for 1-2 days in the Fall.  
In addition, coaches were available to meet with participants following their onsite biometric screening at the Lincoln State Office Building and State Capitol screening events.  These locations were determined by volume and availability and coaching staff.  

	89. Attachment 3

Page 7

Section H #4 asks “Can your organization develop different platform user experiences based on agency? (Please assume appropriate information will be provided in an eligibility file.)”  Please provide additional detail around this request. Are you referring to the “platform” and the “wellness portal” interchangeably?
	Refer to the answer to Question #87.  Platform and wellness portal are interchangeable.  

	90. Attachment 4

Page 1

Please define “Wellness Programming” as used in the Cost Proposal. Are these challenges, telephonic coaching, online coaching, or onsite coaching?
	Wellness Programming would be any costs to offer other programs including physical activity and nutrition.  

The cost of coaching programs would be included on the Coaching sections as indicated on the cost proposal.  

	91. Attachment 4

Page 1-2

What are the current program rates?
	Refer to the answer to Question #11.  

	92. Why are you putting these programs out to bit at this time?
	Refer to the answer to Question #13.

	93. What about the wellness program are you specifically looking to improve my changing vendors? What is working well?
	Refer to the answer to Question #48.  

	94. Do you have a wellness budget?
	Refer to the answer to Question #45.  

	95. Do you have any PGs in place regarding the administration/outcomes of your current program?
	Refer to the answer to Question #41.  

	96. Do you currently have any fitness centers in place at any of your locations?
	No.

	97. On formatting the RFP, where do we put the Project Description and Statement of Work referenced on page 43? Where do we put Form A (page 49)? Should these be included in the Technical Proposal section? 
	Form A may be submitted as part of the Technical Proposal or submitted in a separate section of the proposal response.
The proposal response should be packaged per Section II, G. Submission of Proposals.  Tabs may be included and clearly marked as to the applicable section.

	98. What are the expectations of internal/external partner integrations – please expand on #, timing, type of integration, etc.
	Refer to the answer to Question #62.  

	99. Do you use a preferred biometric screening vendor?
	No, the wellness contractor provides the onsite biometric screenings. 
The use of a subcontractor to facilitate the screening functions is acceptable.   

	100. Are the Wellness Programs (Walking Program, Cardio Program and Nutrition Program) the same as online challenges?
	Yes, Wellness programs are programs tracked online by participants.  

	101. What is the current walk this way program and does it have pedometer/fitness tracker integration?
	The current Walk This Way program is a physical activity offered through our current contractor.  It is one of the programs participants can complete as part of the incentive design.  

Currently, participants may track their steps with a pedometer and enter their activity online or through a Smartphone application.     Fitbit integration is also offered.  



	102. What is the colorful choices program? 
	Colorful Choices is the name of the nutrition program offered by our current contractor to promote healthy eating.  It is one of the programs participants can complete as part of the incentive design.  

	103. Will you provide more detail on the condition management offering today and is this an expectation of our offering or another partner?
	Refer to the answer to Question #82.  
The condition management component should be addressed within the proposal response and all associated costs as indicated on the cost proposal.

	104. Will you expand on “ability to support location recognition process” (under onsite activities and campaigns)?
	The bidder should include in their response how they would assist a specific site who wants to sponsor a specific activity for their staff.  An example, the Department of Roads (one of the offices located in Lincoln) has a weight-loss competition for their office staff. 

	105. Will you expand on “configurability” of portal?
	The platform should be able to be configured to meet the needs of the State’s wellness program.  

	106. Will you expand on ability to track employee and spouse by linked records (is this the coach’s ability to track, members’ to see activities spouse has completed, etc.)?
	Refer to the answer to Question #12.

	107. Can you provide current salary and job description (and credentials) for the Onsite Program Manager and Onsite Wellness Specialist? Are these positions FTE or contractors? Do you want an onsite Account Manager in addition to those two positions? 
	The salary is determined by the contractor.  Refer to the answer to Question #10.  


This addendum will become part of the proposal and should be acknowledged with the Request for Proposal.
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